
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

April 6, 2022 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 818 7176 4542 

Password: 122012 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

I. Call to Order Taylor Jones 

 A.  Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Our Mission and Vision Barbara Sowada 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action)  Taylor Jones 

III. Minutes (For Action) Taylor Jones 

IV. Community Communication  Taylor Jones 

V. Old Business Taylor Jones 

A. COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery - Incident Command Team Update Kim White,  

Director of Emergency Services 

B. Rules of Practice Governing Hearings (For Action) Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel 

C. Compliance Program (from the Compliance Committee) (For Action) Marty Kelsey 

D. Patient Safety Plan (from the Quality Committee) (For Action) Kara Jackson, Director of Quality, 

Accreditation, Patient Safety and Risk 

E. Employee Policy (from the Human Resources Committee)    Barbara Sowada 

1. Social Media Policy (For Action)      

VI. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Taylor Jones  

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

VIII.  Committee Reports 

A. Quality Committee Barbara Sowada 

B. Human Resources Committee  Barbara Sowada 

C. Finance & Audit Committee Ed Tardoni  

1. Bad Debt (For Action) 

March Committee Meeting Information 

D. Building & Grounds Committee Marty Kelsey  

E. Foundation Board Taylor Jones 

F. Compliance Committee Marty Kelsey 

G. Governance Committee Taylor Jones 

H. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Taylor Jones 

I. Joint Conference Committee Taylor Jones 
  

1/147



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

April 6, 2022 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 818 7176 4542 

Password: 122012 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

IX. Board Review of iProtean Barbara Sowada 

X. Contract Review Suzan Campbell 

A. Contract Consent Agenda (For Action)  

1. Express Recovery Services 

2. Unidine 

B. Contracts Approved by CEO since Last Board Meeting (For Your Information) 

1. Civco 

XI. Medical Staff Report Dr. Brianne Crofts  

XII. Good of the Order                 Taylor Jones 

XIII. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix)) Taylor Jones 

XIX. Action Following Executive Session Taylor Jones  

XV. Adjourn Taylor Jones 

 

2/147



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

3/147



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

March 2, 2022 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met via Zoom in regular 

session on March 2, 2022, at 2:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees 

were present online at the call to order: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Ms. Kandi Pendleton, 

Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni.  

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Brianne 

Crofts, Medical Staff President; Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel; Mr. Jeff Smith, Sweetwater 

County Board of County Commissioners Liaison. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Mr. Jones led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Mr. Tardoni read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson read comments aloud provided by members of the Patient and Family Advisory 

Council.  The question for discussion at the February meeting was, "How would you describe the 

Hospital to someone who asked you to tell them about us?" Following are their responses: 

 I would tell someone to give the hospital, their doctors and staff, a chance. There are many 

great people working very hard to make a positive difference in the hospital setting. 

Overlook the Facebook people who know a whole lot about nothing!  Do your own research 

and make your own decisions for yourself and your family. Try it. You’ll like it!  

 Very clean, well-managed and staffed. All of you are great. I've had nothing but excellent 

experiences and would only give an excellent review. 

 When people ask me about the hospital, and they do, I say you're talking about my 

neighbors. Not only physically, but neighbors to the entire community. What stands out is 

that personal touch. I feel like I lose my sense of identity somewhere else. Really strong, 

genuine sense you really do care about every patient that comes in. 

 Cleanliness! I was "gob smacked" at how clean the hospital is. And the efficiency. My 

experiences are mostly with my husband. He was ushered in, given excellent care, then 

ushered out but not just sent out after giving excellent care, they checked up on him. There 

are some people that nothing will ever make them happy. And if they are the loudest voices 

then they are not giving a true representation of the spectacular hospital we have.  

 

4/147



 

 

Minutes of the March 2, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

 A dedicated team of professionals concerned about the well-being of our community time 

and time again. They live in our community and know who you are and check up on you.  

 

Ms. Richardson said the group meets on the last Monday of the month via Zoom and invited the 

Trustees to let her know if they would like to attend. 

 

AGENDA 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as amended to add review of a proposed social media policy 

was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the February 2, 2022, regular meeting as presented was 

made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried. 

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

There were no comments. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery – Incident Command Team Update 

 

Ms. Kim White, Incident Commander and Director of Emergency Services, provided a Covid-19 

update. She said she had good news to report. There has been an all-around decrease in all things 

related to Covid and said it is exciting to be on the downtrend. March 8 is the final day for the 

drive thru Covid vaccinations. Ms. White commended Ms. Noreen Hove, Director of Infection 

Prevention/Employee Health and Grievances, and Ms. Patty O’Lexey, Director of Education, for 

their dedication to ensuring we provided the vaccination services. We are looking at not having a 

dedicated swabbing station in the near future. Mr. Jones thanked Ms. White for her report and for 

everything she and staff have been doing. 

 

Rules of Practice Governing Hearings 

 

Mr. Phillips reported the comment period ends on this date so we cannot adopt until the next 

meeting. He said he is not aware of any comments made to-date.  

 

Compliance Program 

 

Mr. Kelsey said draft information is in the packet for a first reading. He asked for any comments 

or questions to be sent directly to Ms. Richardson. Mr. Kelsey and Ms. Pendleton thanked staff 

who worked on the plan.  

 

  

5/147



 

 

Minutes of the March 2, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

Board Policy: CEO Evaluation 

 

Dr. Sowada said she has not received any comments regarding changes, so she feels the policy is 

ready for approval. The motion to approve the CEO Evaluation Policy as presented was made by 

Dr. Sowada; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried. Dr. Sowada asked for the policy to be 

added to Policy Stat in the correct format.  

 

Medical Staff Bylaws 

 

Mr. Kelsey suggested a change to some wording on page 45 of the document. Dr. Crofts said we 

can approve and then make that correction. She asked Ms. Kerry Downs, Medical Staff Services 

Director, to make the correction. Mr. Kelsey thanked the people involved with the bylaws update. 

He said he thinks it is better now than any version ever presented to the Board. Ms. Richardson 

said she agreed and thanked everyone for their excellent work. Mr. Jones said it has been a huge 

undertaking and expressed his appreciation to everyone involved. The motion to approve the 

Medical Staff Bylaws with the change suggested by Mr. Kelsey as discussed was made by Mr. 

Tardoni; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Patient Safety Plan 

 

Ms. Kara Jackson, Director of Quality, Accreditation, Patient Safety and Risk, said a new plan was 

created last year. She reviewed the information in the packet and said medical staff oversight was 

added this year and the information was reorganized. 

 

Social Media Policy 

 

Dr. Sowada said the policy replaces another current policy and will bring the Hospital up to date 

with what is needed at this time. She said it is an important policy.  

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson welcomed Ms. Robin Jenkins, the new Director of Care Management. Ms. 

Richardson said the Cerner electronic health record go-live was scheduled February 28. The Senior 

Leaders met with the Project Team and Cerner representatives to decide if that was the right timing. 

After careful analysis and evaluation, the group felt the best success would come from postponing 

go-live for a small amount of time. We are now looking at the week of April 18. Ms. Richardson 

said the Centers for Disease Control issued new guidance on masks in non-healthcare settings. She 

clarified the Hospital will continue to wear masks. Ms. Richardson provided an update on supply 

chain issues and thanked Ms. Angel Bennett, Materials Management Director, and her staff for all 

they are doing to help us get the supplies we need. The Hospital experienced frozen sprinkler lines 

the previous week. Ms. Richardson commended the staff for their quick response and clean-up. 

She said a report will be provided at the Building and Grounds Committee March meeting. Ms. 

Richardson said we continue working on budgets. We will determine the timing of a Finance and 

Audit Workshop. March is healthcare month. Low-cost lab testing will be offered Tuesdays and 

Wednesdays with appointments or on a walk-in basis. Weekly drawings and a grand prize at the 

6/147



 

 

Minutes of the March 2, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

end of the month will be awarded. Ms. Richardson provided a strategic plan update. In the area of 

patient experience, our person-centered care work continues. She said compassionate care and 

person-centered care are our culture and commended everyone involved in those efforts. In the 

area of quality, we continue preparing for our lab survey and we successfully moved to Synergi 

from Midas. In the area of community, Ms. Richardson congratulated Ms. Tiffany Marshall, 

Foundation Executive Director, for a hugely successful Red Tie event. She thanked staff and 

physicians for their involvement and support. Ms. Richardson thanked the Board for their generous 

donation to the auction. She thanked all sponsors and everyone participating in activities. In the 

area of financial stewardship, Ms. Richardson reported we submitted a lab remodel for an 

estimated $5-7M for a six-penny project. We continue looking at vendors for a culinary services 

contract. We plan to bring a contract to the next meeting for Board approval. Ms. Richardson said 

we continue working with the Wyoming Hospital Association on current proposed legislation. She 

thanked local legislators for all they are doing for our community. In the area of workplace 

experience, Ms. Richardson thanked staff and physicians for the work they do. She commended 

everyone for all of their hard work and service to our community. She thanked the Board for their 

support and help, and thanked the Commissioners for all of their support. Mr. Jones echoed her 

comments and expressed his appreciation on behalf of the Board. There was brief discussion of 

workshops vs. presentations in regular meetings. Ms. Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel, 

requested an hour after July 1 for annual compliance training and updates.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Quality Committee 
 

Dr. Sowada said the information is in the packet. 

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the information is in the packet. 

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni said he did not attend the meeting due to a conflict with the State Miner’s Board 

meeting. Ms. Pendleton conducted the meeting and reported the information is in the packet.  

 

Capital Expenditure Request: The motion to approve capital expenditure request FY21-53 for 

$230,805 for work in Dr. Sulentich’s office was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Tardoni. 

Motion carried. The request was approved previously and there were changes. Also, Dr. Sulentich 

has agreed to pay 50% of the expense.  

 

Bad Debt: The motion to approve the net potential bad debt of $1,515,577.49 as presented was 

made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

Building & Grounds Committee 

 

Mr. Kelsey said the information is in the packet. 

 

7/147



 

 

Minutes of the March 2, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

Foundation 

 

Ms. Marshall reported on the Red Tie Gala. She said we hit our goal of $100,000. She is also 

pleased with the profit portion. Ms. Marshall thanked the Trustees for their donation to the auction. 

She said the Foundation is rolling out the Guardian Angel Program as a way for patients and 

families to thank someone at the Hospital. The Foundation Retreat for the Foundation Board, 

Hospital Board, and Senior Leaders is scheduled April 21. She said 100% attendance is so 

important to what we are trying to do. Mr. Jones thanked everyone for participation in the week of 

activities leading up to the event. Ms. Pendleton said the event was well done.  

 

Compliance Committee 

 

Mr. Kelsey reported information is in the packet. 

 

Governance Committee 

 

Mr. Jones said the minutes are in the packet.  

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee and Joint Conference Committee 

 

Mr. Jones said Executive Oversight and Compensation is handled during Executive Session and 

there was nothing new to report for Joint Conference Committee. 

 

BOARD REVIEW OF IPROTEAN 

 

Dr. Sowada said the video was about doing more with less. She asked Mr. Tardoni to facilitate the 

discussion. Ms. Pendleton said she felt the information was valuable, interesting, and worthwhile. 

Dr. Sowada said the portfolio assessment would be valuable in looking at the strategic plan. The 

multi-year financial forecast information is valuable. Mr. Kelsey said his main takeaway was 

destination final metrics. He also liked the portfolio assessment. Mr. Jones said there is always 

something we can improve. He liked the information on balance between finances and community 

needs. Mr. Jones said he feels good about this Board and what the Board has done and continue 

doing. Mr. Tardoni wants to make sure all Board members have a copy of the Wyoming statute 

defining what a memorial hospital is when they watch the next videos. He added he thinks the 

Quality staff have been phenomenal with keeping up with regulations.  

 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

 

Contract Consent Agenda 

 

The motion to approve the Tacore Medical contract was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Dr. 

Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

  

8/147



 

 

Minutes of the March 2, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Crofts said she has been getting a good response with providers regarding Cerner coming. She 

said she thinks providers are excited, on-board, and getting ready. 

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 

Mr. Tardoni said his term on the State Miner’s Board ends in 2023. He reminded people you don’t have to 

be a Hospital Trustee to serve on that Board.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Mr. Jones said there would be an executive session. He said the Board would leave the current 

meeting, go to another link, and then return to the original meeting for actions taken following 

executive session. He said the Board would take a 7-minute break and reconvene in executive 

session at 3:20 PM. The motion to go into executive session was made by Dr. Sowada; second by 

Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.   

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

At 3:50 PM, the motion to leave executive session and return to regular session was made by Dr. 

Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Approval of Privileges 
 

The motion to approve the credentials and privileges for the providers discussed in executive 

session was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried. 

 

Credentials Committee Recommendations from February 8, 2022 

 

1. Initial Appointment to AHP Staff (1 year) 

 Emily James, OB/GYN Family Nurse Practitioner 

2. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 year) 

 Dr. Neal Asper, Anesthesia 

3. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Brent Wilson, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

 Dr. Alexander Colonna, Tele ICU (U of U) 

 Dr. Marta McCrum, Tele ICU (U of U)  

 Dr. David Renner, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

4. Reappointment to AHP Staff (2 years) 

 Melissa Jewell, Family Medicine Physician Assistant 

 

The motion to approve the four contracts discussed in executive session and authorize the CEO to 

sign the contracts was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 

  

9/147



 

 

Minutes of the March 2, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 7 

ADJOURNMENT 

The next meeting is scheduled April 6, 2022 at 2:00 PM. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 3:52 PM.   

      

 

 

         ___________________________________ 

      Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

10/147



11/147



12/147



13/147



14/147



15/147



16/147



17/147



18/147



19/147



20/147



21/147



22/147



23/147



24/147



25/147



26/147



27/147



28/147



29/147



30/147



31/147



32/147



33/147



34/147



DRAFT

Current Status: Draft PolicyStat ID: 11124520 

Approved: N/A 
Review Due: N/A 
Document Area: Administration 
Reg. Standards: 

MHSC COMPLIANCE PROGRAM 

• Educate all Staff about applicable laws and provide training in matters of compliance; 

• Ensure periodic auditing, monitoring and oversight of compliance with those laws; 

• Create an atmosphere that encourages and enables the reporting of noncompliance without fear of 
retribution; and 

• Ensure mechanisms exist to investigate, discipline and correct noncompliance. 

MHSC COMPLIANCE PROGRAM SUMMARY 

Purpose of This Compliance Program 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County is committed to ensuring compliance with all applicable statutes, 
regulations and policies governing the Hospital's daily business activities. To that end, MHSC created a 
Compliance Program to serve as a practical guide that can be used by all Staff to assist them in performing 
their job functions in a manner that complies with applicable laws and policies. This Compliance Program is 
intended to further Staff's day-to-day commitment that Hospital operations comply with federal and state laws 
and to serve as a mechanism for preventing and reporting any violation of those laws. 

It is the purpose and policy of the MHSC Compliance Program to: 

Contractors, vendors, temporary staff, contracted staff and others not defined as Staff below are also 
required to adhere to this Compliance Program and will be provided information as to intent and 
content of this Program during initial on-boarding. 

COMPLIANCE PROGRAM 

MHSC has created a comprehensive Compliance Program which includes: 

Compliance Plan This document is comprised of the following sections: Definitions; Compliance Program 
Systems and Processes; and Reappraisal of overall Compliance Program and Plan. 

The Code of Conduct 

Staff are subject to the Code of Conduct which is an integral part of the Compliance Program. It contains 
specific policies related to Staff's personal conduct while performing their job duties at the Hospital. The 
primary objective of the Code of Conduct is to create a work environment that promotes cooperation, 
professionalism and compliance with the law. Compliance with the Code of Conduct is a significant factor in 
employee performance evaluations. Medical Providers are subject to the Code of Conduct contained in 
the Medical Staff Bylaws and the Hospital's Code of Conduct. 

MHSC COMPLIANCE PROGRAM. Retrieved 02/2022. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
11124520/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 7

35/147



DRAFT

1. Hospital- means Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County and all of its locations. 
Staff- means all employees and volunteers of the Hospital. 

• The Hospital has a Compliance Officer who serves as the primary supervisor of this Compliance 
Program. The Hospital's Compliance Officer occupies a high-level position within the organization and 
has authority to carry out all compliance responsibilities described in this Compliance Program. The 
Compliance Officer is responsible, together with leadership, for assuring that the Compliance Program is 
implemented to ensure that the Hospital maintains business integrity and that all applicable statutes, 
regulations and policies are followed. 

• The Compliance Officer provides reports to the Board of Trustees about the Compliance Program and 
compliance issues. The CEO is responsible for supervising the work of the Compliance Officer, and 
maintaining the standards of conduct set forth in the Compliance Program. The Board of Trustees 
oversees all of the Hospital's compliance efforts and takes any appropriate and necessary actions to 
ensure that the Hospital conducts its activities in compliance with the law and sound business ethics. 

• The Compliance Officer, the CEO and, if deemed necessary by the CEO, the Board of Trustees shall 
consult with legal counsel as necessary on compliance issues raised by the ongoing compliance review. 

• Overseeing and monitoring the implementation and maintenance of the Compliance Program. 
• Reporting on a regular basis to the Board of Trustees (no less than annually) on the progress of 

implementation and operation of the Compliance Program and assisting the CEO in establishing methods 
to reduce the Hospital's risk of fraud, abuse and waste. 

• Periodically reviewing and recommending changes to the Compliance Program in light of changes in the 
needs of the Hospital and changes in applicable statutes, regulations and government policies. 

• Reviewing, at least annually, the implementation and execution of the elements of this Compliance 
Program. 

• Developing, coordinating and participating in educational and training programs that focus on elements of 
the Compliance Program with the goal of ensuring that all appropriate Staff are knowledgeable about, and 
act in accordance with, this Compliance Program and all pertinent federal and state requirements. 

• Ensuring that independent contractors and all other non-Staff of the Hospital are aware of the 
requirements of this Compliance Program as it applies to and affects the services provided by such 
contractors and agents. 

COMPLIANCE PLAN 

SECTION I. Definitions of Commonly Used Terms 

SECTION II. COMPLIANCE PROGRAM SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES 

The purpose of this section is to explain the various systems and processes that the Hospital has in place for 
the purpose of providing structure and support to the overall Compliance Program. This section explains the 
roles of the Compliance Officer and the Compliance Committee. It also contains information about 
Compliance Program education and training, auditing and corrective action. Most importantly, this section 
explains how to report violations anonymously. 

Compliance Officers and Committee 

Compliance Officer 

Responsibilities of the Compliance Officer 

The Compliance Officer's responsibilities include the following: 

MHSC COMPLIANCE PROGRAM. Retrieved 02/2022. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
11124520/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 7

36/147



DRAFT

• Ensuring that employees, independent contractors, and agents of the Hospital have not been excluded 
from participating in Medicare, Medicaid or any other federal or state health care program. 

• Ensuring that the Hospital does not employ or contract with any individual who has been convicted of a 
criminal offense related to health care within the previous five years, or who is listed by a federal or state 
agency as debarred, excluded, or otherwise ineligible for participation in Medicare, Medicaid, or any other 
federal or state health care program. 

• Coordinating internal compliance review and monitoring activities. 
• In conjunction with supervisors and the Human Resources Department, investigating and acting on 

matters related to compliance, including design and coordination of internal investigations and making 
recommendations for any corrective action. 

• Designating work groups or task forces needed to carry out specific missions, such as investigating or 
evaluating a proposed enhancement to the Compliance Program. 

• The Compliance Officer has the authority to review all documents and other information relevant to 
compliance activities, including, but not limited to, patient records, billing records, records concerning 
marketing efforts and all arrangements with third parties, including without limitation employees, 
independent contractors, suppliers, agents and physicians. 

• The Compliance Officer has direct access to the Board of Trustees, CEO and other senior management, 
and to legal counsel. The Compliance Officer, with approval of the CEO, has the authority to retain, as he 
or she deems necessary, outside legal counsel. 

Compliance Committee 

The Hospital has established a Compliance Committee to advise the Compliance Officer and assist in 
monitoring this Compliance Program. The Compliance Committee provides the perspectives of individuals 
with diverse knowledge and responsibilities within the Hospital. 

The Board Compliance Committee shall consist of four (4) voting members and shall include the Chief 
Executive Officer, Compliance Officer, and two members of the Board of Trustees, one of whom shall serve 
as chair. The Compliance Auditor will be a non-voting member of the Committee and may serve as Secretary 
for meeting minutes. 

Functions of the Compliance Committee 

In fulfilling its charge, the Board Compliance Committee is responsible for the overseeing and all aspects of 
the Compliance Program as outlined in the Compliance Committee Charter. 

Compliance as an Element of Performance 

Attendance and participation in compliance training programs is a condition of continued employment. Failure 
to comply with training requirements will result in disciplinary action, including possible termination. The 
promotion of, and adherence to, the elements of this Compliance Program is a factor in evaluating the 
performance of all Hospital employees. Staff will be trained periodically regarding the Compliance Program, 
and new compliance policies that are adopted. Each staff member must sign the Acknowledgement of 
Receipt of Hospital Compliance Plan and annually sign the Conflict of Interest Certification form. 

Supervisors will be subject to discipline for failure to adequately instruct their subordinates on matters covered 
by the Compliance Program. Supervisors will also be subject to discipline for failing to detect violations of the 
Compliance Program where reasonable diligence on the part of the supervisor would have led to the 
discovery of a problem or violation and thus would have provided the Hospital with the opportunity to take 
corrective action. 

Training and Education 

MHSC COMPLIANCE PROGRAM. Retrieved 02/2022. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
11124520/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 7

37/147



DRAFT
• Via the on-line Red Flag Reporting Program 
• Via a phone message to Red Flag Reporting 
• Via an email to Red Flag Reporting or 
• Via an in person report to Hospital's Compliance Officer 

The Hospital acknowledges that this Compliance Program will be effective only if it is communicated and 
explained to Staff on a routine basis and in a manner that clearly explains its requirements. For this reason, 
the Hospital requires all Staff to attend specific training programs on a periodic basis. Training requirements 
and scheduling are established by the Hospital for its departments and affiliates based on the needs and 
requirements of each department and affiliate. Training programs include appropriate training in federal and 
state statutes, regulations, guidelines, ethical behavior, and policies described in this Compliance Program. 
Training will be conducted by Staff. New employees will be provided compliance training during orientation. 
Compliance will be part of annual education for all staff. Adherence with the provisions of this Compliance 
Program, including training requirements, is a factor in the annual evaluation of each Hospital employee. 
Training may include sessions highlighting this Compliance Program, summarizing fraud and abuse laws, 
physician self-referral laws, claims development and submission processes, and related business practices 
that reflect current legal standards. In addition to annual education on compliance, compliance training will be 
provided to Staff as needed and requested. 

The Compliance Officer evaluates the content of the training program at least annually to ensure that the 
subject content is appropriate and sufficient to cover the range of issues confronting the Hospital's employees. 
The training program is modified as necessary to keep up-to-date with any changes in federal and state 
health care program requirements, and to address results of the Hospital's audits and investigations; results 
from previous training and education programs; trends in reporting; and guidance from applicable federal and 
state agencies. The appropriateness of the training format is evaluated by reviewing the length of the training 
sessions; whether training is delivered via live instructors or via computer-based training programs; the 
frequency of training sessions; and the need for general and specific training sessions. 

The Board of Trustees will be provided periodic training, not less than annually, on fraud and abuse laws and 
other compliance matters. 

Lines of Communicating and Reporting 

Submitting Questions or Complaints 

Individuals may utilize any of the following options to communicate a concern or raise a question associated 
with the Hospital's Compliance Program: 

The most anonymous way to communicate a concern or raise a question is via the on-line Red Flag Reporting 
Program. This reporting program is staffed by a third party and a message delivered this way can help ensure 
confidentiality (see important note below). The program is available seven days a week all year.  Posters with 
the Hospital's specific code needed to file a report are located throughout the Hospital, MOB and Family 
Practice Clinic. 

Important Note: Communications regarding concerns and questions are treated as privileged to the extent 
permitted by applicable law; however, it is possible that the identity of a person making a report may become 
known.  Governmental authorities or a court may compel disclosure of the name of the reporting person. 

Matters reported via one of the options stated above that suggest violations of compliance policies, statutes or 
regulations, are documented and investigated promptly. A log is maintained by the Compliance Officer of calls 
or communications, including the nature of any investigation and subsequent results. A summary of this 

MHSC COMPLIANCE PROGRAM. Retrieved 02/2022. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
11124520/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 4 of 7

38/147



DRAFT
• The Compliance Officer will develop and implement an audit plan. The plan will be reviewed at least 

annually to determine whether it addresses the proper areas of concern, considering, for example, 
findings from previous years' audits, risk areas identified as part of the annual risk assessment, and high-
volume services. 

• Periodic compliance audits are used to promote and ensure compliance. The audits will focus on specific 
programs or departments of the Hospital, including external relationships with third-party contractors. 
These audits are designed to address, at a minimum, compliance with laws governing kickback 
arrangements, physician self-referrals, claims development and submission (including an assessment of 
the Hospital's billing system), reimbursement and marketing. All Staff are expected to cooperate fully with 
auditors during this process by providing information, answering questions, etc. If any employee has 
concerns regarding the scope or manner of an audit, the employee should discuss this with his or her 
immediate supervisor. 

information is included in reports by the Compliance Officer to the Compliance Committee, CEO and Board of 
Trustees. 

Non-Retaliation Policy 

It is the Hospital's policy to prohibit retaliatory action against any person for making a report, anonymous or 
otherwise, regarding compliance. However, Hospital Staff cannot use complaints to the Compliance Officer to 
insulate themselves from the consequences of their own wrongdoing or misconduct. False or deceptive 
reports may be grounds for termination. It will be considered a mitigating factor if a person makes a forthright 
disclosure of an error or violation of this Compliance Program, or the governing statutes and regulations. 

Enforcing Standards and Policies 

Code of Conduct and related policies 

It is the policy of the Hospital to appropriately discipline Hospital Staff who fail to comply with the Code of 
Conduct adopted pursuant to the overall Hospital Compliance Program or any federal or state statutes or 
regulations. 

Discipline Procedures 

Employees found to have violated any provision of the Compliance Program are subject to discipline 
consistent with the policies set forth herein, including termination of employment if deemed appropriate by the 
Hospital. Any such discipline is within the sole discretion of the Hospital. Each instance involving disciplinary 
action shall be thoroughly documented by the employee's supervisor (in conjunction with HR) and the 
Compliance Officer. Upon determining that an employee of the Hospital or any of its affiliates has committed a 
violation of this Compliance Program, such employee shall meet with his or her supervisor to review the 
conduct that resulted in the violation. The employee and supervisor will meet with the Compliance Officer to 
discuss any actions that may be taken to remedy such violation. All employees are expected to cooperate 
fully with the Compliance Officer and supervisors during the investigation of the violation. If deemed 
appropriate, legal counsel will be consulted prior to final actions or disciplinary measures imposed by 
supervisory personnel. 

Auditing and Monitoring 

The Hospital conducts periodic monitoring of this Compliance Program. Compliance reports created by this 
monitoring, including reports of suspected noncompliance, will be reviewed and maintained by the 
Compliance Officer and shared with the Compliance Committee. 

MHSC COMPLIANCE PROGRAM. Retrieved 02/2022. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
11124520/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 5 of 7

39/147



DRAFT

• The Hospital shall conduct periodic reviews, including unscheduled reviews, to determine whether the 
elements of this Compliance Program have been satisfied. Appropriate modifications to the Compliance 
Program will be implemented when monitoring discloses that compliance issues have not been detected 
in a timely manner due to Compliance Program deficiencies. 

• Violations of the Compliance Program, failure to comply with applicable federal or state laws, and other 
types of misconduct threaten the Hospital's status as a reliable and honest provider of health care 
services. Detected but uncorrected misconduct can seriously endanger the Hospital's business and 
reputation, and can lead to serious sanctions against the Hospital. Consequently, upon reports or 
reasonable indications of suspected noncompliance, prompt steps to investigate the conduct in question 
will be initiated under the direction and control of the Compliance Officer to determine whether a material 
violation of applicable law or the requirements of the Compliance Program has occurred. The Compliance 
Officer may create a response team to review suspected noncompliance including representatives from 
the compliance and other relevant departments. 

• If such a violation has occurred, prompt steps will be taken to correct the problem, taking into account the 
root cause of the problem. As appropriate, such steps may include an immediate referral to criminal and/
or civil law enforcement authorities, a corrective action plan, a report to the Office of Inspector General 
(OIG) or any other appropriate government organization, and/or submission of any over-payments. The 
specific steps that are appropriate in any given case will be determined after consultation with legal 
counsel. 

• Depending upon the nature of the alleged violations, the Compliance Officer's internal investigation could 
include interviews with relevant Staff and a review of relevant documents. The CEO must approve all 
engagement of legal counsel, auditors or health care experts selected by the Compliance Officer to assist 
in an investigation where the Compliance Officer and supervisor deems such assistance appropriate. 
Complete records of all investigations will be maintained which contain documentation of the alleged 
violations, a description of the investigative process, copies of interview notes and key documents, a log 
of the witnesses interviewed and the documents reviewed, results of the investigation (e.g., any 
disciplinary action taken), and corrective actions implemented. 

• If an investigation of an alleged violation is undertaken and the Compliance Officer believes the integrity 
of the investigation may be at stake because of the presence of employees under investigation, those 
employees will be removed from their current work activity until the investigation is completed. Where 
necessary, the Compliance Officer will take appropriate steps to secure or prevent the destruction of 
documents or other evidence relevant to the investigation. 

• If the Compliance Officer or a management official discovers credible evidence of misconduct from any 
source and, after reasonable inquiry, has reason to believe that the misconduct may violate criminal, civil 
or administrative law, then the misconduct will promptly be reported as appropriate to the OIG or any 
other appropriate governmental authority or federal and/or state law enforcement agency having 
jurisdiction over such matter. Such reports will be made by the Compliance Officer after review and 
approval by the CEO on a timely basis. Supervisors will be made aware that such report is being filed. 

• All over-payments identified by the Hospital shall be promptly disclosed and/or refunded to the 
appropriate public or private payer or other entity. 

Corrective Action 

Violations and Investigations 

Reporting to Federal Agencies 

MHSC COMPLIANCE PROGRAM. Retrieved 02/2022. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
11124520/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 6 of 7

40/147



DRAFT
Attachments 

Appendix to Compliance Program.docx 

SECTION III. REAPPRAISAL OF OVERALL COMPLIANCE PROGRAM AND COMPLIANCE PLAN 

The Compliance Program as a whole and this Compliance Plan will be reviewed on an ongoing basis. The 
review process occurs in order to evaluate the effectiveness of the Compliance Program, to reflect current 
practices and changes, to ensure that appropriate services are monitored, delivered, and evaluated in 
accordance with the Compliance Program. 

MHSC believes that by implementing an effective Compliance Program it will achieve better quality control 
and reduce the risk of future criminal and civil liabilities. MHSC recognizes that the implementation of a 
compliance program may not entirely eliminate fraud, abuse and waste. However, a sincere effort by Hospital 
to comply with applicable federal and state standards through the establishment of an effective compliance 
program significantly reduces the risk of unlawful or improper conduct. 

APPENDIX   List of federal and state statutes and regulations related to the Hospital's Compliance Program. 

MHSC COMPLIANCE PROGRAM. Retrieved 02/2022. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
11124520/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 7 of 7

41/147



DRAFT

Current Status: Draft PolicyStat ID: 10423249 
Approved: N/A 
Review Due: N/A 
Document Area: General - Housewide 
Reg. Standards: APR 09.01.01, APR 09.02.01, 

TJC EC.04.01.01, TJC 
IC.01.03.01, TJC LD.02.01.01, 
TJC LD.03.01.01, TJC 
LD.03.02.01, TJC LD.03.03.01, 
TJC LD.03.04.01, TJC 
LD.03.05.01, TJC LD.03.07.01, 
TJC LD.03.09.01, TJC 
LD.04.01.01, TJC LD.04.01.05, 
TJC LD.04.01.10, TJC 
MM.07.01.03, TJC 
MM.08.01.01, TJC 
MS.09.01.01, TJC NR.02.01.01, 
TJC PI.01.01.01, TJC 
PI.02.01.01, TJC PI.03.01.01, 
TJC RI 02.01.01, TJC 
RI.01.01.01, TJC RI.01.01.03, 
TJC RI.01.02.01, TJC 
RI.01.03.01, TJC RI.01.05.01 

Patient Safety Plan 
Introduction 

Purpose 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) is committed to providing compassionate, high-quality care 
with a strong culture of safety for the best patient outcomes. Our objective is to support a culture of safety for 
our patients and workers, as well as supporting an unrelenting commitment to safety and to do no harm. This 
culture allows our organization to consistently identify opportunities to improve performance and safety, while 
maintaining a commitment to responsible stewardship of resources as aligned with MHSC's mission, vision, 
values, and strategic objectives. The Patient Safety Plan cultivates an organization-wide approach and 
provides a coordinated and collaborative effort to patient safety. 

MHSC strives for staff to feel supported, safe and empowered in speaking up about errors, Good Catches/
near misses, and related opportunities for improvement. MHSC promotes a “Just Culture” of safety which 
balances a non-punitive learning environment with an equally important need to hold people accountable for 
their actions. Just Culture is a value supported system of accountability that allows individuals to report 
occurrences in an atmosphere of trust. The purpose of MHSC’s Patient Safety Plan is to build a framework for 
the delivery of safe care, perpetuate a culture of safety, improve patient safety and reduce risk to patients 
through reducing variability in care processes, increasing reporting of safety events, and overall reduction of 
preventable adverse events. 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 02/2022. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/10423249/. Copyright
© 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 8

42/147



DRAFT

Scope 

Objectives 
I. To acknowledge risks to patient safety such that medical and human errors will occur in a complex 

environment 

II. To recognize and report errors and risks to patient safety within a Just Culture 

III. To engage staff in internal reporting by: 

A. Ensuring a non-punitive approach to patient safety event reporting 

B. Educating staff on identifying patient safety events that should be reported 

C. Providing timely feedback regarding actions taken on patient safety events 

IV. To promote patient safety through effective management of identified risks and prevention of adverse 
events 

V. To reduce the opportunity for harm and improve safety mechanisms 

VI. To minimize blame or unfair treatment for reporting or involvement in errors 

VII. To collect and analyze data to ensure proper prioritization of process improvements 

VIII. To identify risk through trending of confidential patient safety occurrence information from individual event 
reports and aggregate data reports 

IX. To integrate patient safety priorities into the design and redesign of all relevant organizational processes, 
functions, and services 

X. To create an accountable Culture of Safety 

XI. To investigate and analyze with a focus on process and system improvements 

XII. To utilize a standardized tool which offers a clear, equitable and transparent process for recognizing and 
separating blameless errors from unsafe or reckless act (Appendix A-Just Culture Algorithms). 

XIII. To provide open communication regarding patient safety risks, events, and system-based improvements 

XIV. To provide open communication with patients and families about medical errors that occur (See 
Disclosure of Medical Events Policy) 

XV. To facilitate organizational learning about patient safety occurrences 

XVI. To use education as a key strategy for prevention of patient safety issues based on needs specific to the 
organization 

XVII. To identify at least one high-risk patient safety process selected at a minimum of every 18 months for 
proactive risk assessment. The following may be considered, but not limited to, when selecting a 
proactive risk assessment: 

A. The Joint Commission Sentinel Event alerts 

B. Core Measure performance data 

C. Occurrence reporting information 

The Patient Safety Plan is organization wide and encompasses patients, visitors, volunteers, medical staff, 
and staff. The plan addresses maintenance and improvement of patient safety issues in all departments 
throughout the organization. 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 02/2022. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/10423249/. Copyright
© 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 8

43/147



DRAFT

D. Performance Improvement Priority Matrix (see Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) 
Plan) 

E. Information from external sources: state, federal and current literature 

XVIII. To support initiatives that promote person-centered care and involvement 

XIX. To identify patient perception of safety issues using patient satisfaction survey data 

XX. To regularly evaluate staffs’ perception of the organizations’ culture of safety using a valid and reliable 
survey tool, and to implement improvements identified from survey results 

Definitions 

I. Inappropriate words (profane, insulting, intimidating, demeaning, humiliating, or abusive language) 

II. Shaming others for negative outcomes 

III. Unjustified negative comments or complaints about another provider’s care 

IV. Refusal to comply with known and generally accepted practice standards, the refusal of which may 
prevent other providers from delivering quality care 

V. Not working collaboratively or cooperatively with other members of the interdisciplinary team 

VI. Creating rigid or inflexible barriers to requests for assistance or cooperation 

VII. Not returning pages or calls promptly 

Organization and Accountability 

Patient safety: Is the prevention of errors and adverse effects to patients that are associated with health care. 

Patient harm: Unintended physical or psychological injury or damage resulting from or contributed to by 
medical care that requires additional monitoring, treatment, or hospitalization, or that results in death. 

Safety culture: Is the product of individual and group beliefs, values, attitudes, perceptions, competencies and 
patterns of behavior that determine the organizations commitment to quality and patient safety. 

Non-punitive reporting: A reporting system where individuals are not punished for reporting adverse events, 
close calls and hazards, and shall not incur repercussions for sharing details of an event. 

Hazardous or unsafe conditions: A circumstance (other than a patient’s own disease process or condition) 
that increases the probability of and adverse event, as it relates to patient safety. 

Zero tolerance for reckless behavior:  MHSC will not tolerate any reckless behavior or willful violations that 
may place a patient, provider or staff at risk, or results in abuse. These behaviors will result in disciplinary 
action or termination, please see the Employee Corrective Action policy for further information. 

Intimidating and disrespectful behaviors disrupt the culture of safety and prevent collaboration, 
communication, and teamwork, which is required for safe and highly reliable patient care. Disrespect is not 
limited to outbursts of anger that humiliate a member of the health care team; it can manifest in many forms, 
including the following: 

For further definitions refer to Occurrence Reporting, Sentinel Event Policy, Disclosure of Adverse Medical 
Event 

MHSC recognizes that all staff have an impact on patient safety. All staff are expected to participate in patient 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 02/2022. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/10423249/. Copyright
© 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 8

44/147



DRAFT

I. Hold Senior Leadership accountable for promoting and modeling behaviors consistent with Just Culture, 
as well as overseeing actions to improve patient safety throughout the organization 

II. Review and approve Patient Safety Plan annually 

III. Review annual written report provided by Patient Safety Committee 

IV. Ensure quality and safety are at the core of the organization's mission 

V. Ensure quality and safety values are embedded in guiding the organization's strategic plan 

I. Create and maintain a culture of safety at the hospital that supports effective implementation of the 
Patient Safety Plan 

II. Provide the resources necessary for the effective implementation of the Patient Safety Plan 

III. Define, in writing, the following terms: 

A. Patient safety event 

B. Adverse events 

C. Adverse drug events 

D. Medication errors 

E. Sentinel events 

F. Good Catch/close call/near miss 

IV. Disseminate these definitions throughout the organization 

V. Set expectations for improvement work based on results from the Culture of Safety survey 

VI. Participate in regular safety rounds 

VII. Encourage communication of ongoing efforts to improve safety in the organization 

I. Create and maintain a culture of safety that supports effective implementation of the Patient Safety Plan 

II. Inform staff of patient safety initiatives 

III. Encourage participation in patient safety principles and initiatives, performance improvement, and 
problem-solving processes 

IV. Ensure completion of performance improvements and action plans 

V. Provide the foundation for an environment that supports Just Culture and patient safety by: 

A. Promoting learning 

B. Motivating staff to uphold a fair and Just Culture of safety 

C. Providing a transparent environment in which quality measures and patient harms are freely shared 
with staff 

D. Modeling professional behavior by adopting and promoting the MHSC Code of Conduct that defines 

safety activities and encouraged to offer suggestions and recommendations through their involvement in 
occurrence reports, patient safety initiatives, department meetings, and other formal and informal means. 

Board of Trustees 

Senior Leadership Team 

Leadership Team 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 02/2022. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/10423249/. Copyright
© 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 4 of 8

45/147



DRAFT

acceptable behavior as well as behaviors that undermine a culture of safety. 

E. Addressing intimidating behavior that undermines the safety culture so as not to inhibit others from 
reporting safety concerns 

F. Educating staff and holding them accountable for professional behavior 

VI. When a patient safety event occurs, provide resources and mechanisms for support as necessary 
following a patient safety event 

A. Examples include but are not limited to, debriefing, counseling, and resources provided through the 
employee assistance program 

VII. Disseminate lessons learned from safety events 

I. Provide effective mechanisms to measure, assess, and improve the quality and appropriateness of 
patient care, and the clinical performance of all individuals with delineated clinical privileges, 
accomplished through Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluations (OPPE), Focused Professional Practice 
Evaluations (FPPE), and Peer Review Process (refer to Professional Practice Review Process – Medical 
Staff Peer Review) 

II. Know and understand the culture of safety, the role of occurrence reporting in the culture of safety, and 
their rights and responsibilities under the culture of safety 

III. Report all observed or suspected patient safety events (both events that do and do not reach the patient, 
and do or do not cause harm to the patient) immediately, and document events through designated 
reporting software 

IV. Participate in any investigative activities including but not limited to the following: 

A. Describe, in writing, the situation and event 

B. Any clinical data related to the event (for example, patient’s vital signs, medication name and 
dosage, and so on) 
Identify any other staff members who were present during the event 

C. Answer questions from the individual(s) investigating the event 

D. Collaborate with Quality department, department directors and others as appropriate, to design and 
implement corrective actions and monitor the results 

V. Provide the foundation for an environment that supports Just Culture and patient safety by: 

A. Modeling professional behavior by adopting and promoting the MHSC Code of Conduct that defines 
acceptable behavior as well as behaviors that undermine a culture of safety. 

B. Addressing intimidating behavior that undermines the safety culture so as not to inhibit others from 
reporting safety concerns 

I. Facilitate education about patient safety principles to the Board of Trustees 

II. Coordinate and provide patient safety education at new employee orientation and to staff annually 

III. Collaborate with department directors to determine whether a reported patient safety event is likely to be 
repeated 

IV. Conduct a Root Cause Analysis - see Sentinel Event Policy for more information 

Medical Staff 

Quality Department 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 02/2022. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/10423249/. Copyright
© 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 5 of 8

46/147



DRAFT

I. Know and understand the organizational definitions of the following terms, as provided by leadership: 

A. Patient safety event 

B. Adverse events 

C. Adverse drug events 

D. Medication errors 

E. Sentinel events 

F. Good Catch/close call/near miss 

II. Comply with all hospital policies and procedures related to patient safety that apply to their position and 
job duties 

III. Know and understand the culture of safety, the role of occurrence reporting in the culture of safety, and 
their rights and responsibilities under the culture of safety 

IV. Improve the culture of safety and accountability by employing a “see something, say something, do 
something” approach 

V. Report all observed or suspected patient safety events (both events that do and do not reach the patient, 
and do or do not cause harm to the patient) to their department manager or supervisor immediately, and 
document events through designated reporting software 

VI. Participate in any investigative activities including but not limited to the following: 

A. Describe, in writing, the situation and event 

B. Any clinical data related to the event (for example, patient’s vital signs, medication name and 
dosage, and so on) 

C. Identify any other staff members who were present during the event 

D. Answer questions from the individual(s) investigating the event 

E. Collaborate with Quality department, department directors and others as appropriate, to design and 
implement corrective actions and monitor the results 

VII. Participate in improvement activities related to the Patient Safety Plan 

VIII. Constantly hold patient safety at the forefront and continue to advocate for changes where opportunities 
are identified 

IX. Encourage patients and their family members to speak up when they observe or suspect a patient safety 
event or if they have questions about the safety of a system or process 

X. For further information please refer to Occurrence Reporting and/or Sentinel Event Policy. 

Data 

Patient Safety Committee 

Please see the Patient Safety Committee Charter for details on the responsibilities of the Patient Safety 
Committee. 

Staff and Volunteers 

Monitor data that is further specified and defined in the PIPS Plan and Patient Safety Committee Charter. 
Information from data analysis is used to make changes that improve performance and patient safety and 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 02/2022. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/10423249/. Copyright
© 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 6 of 8

47/147



DRAFT

Communication 

I. Quality Committee of the Board 

II. PIPS Committee 

III. Patient Safety Committee 

IV. Leadership meetings 

V. Medical Staff meetings 

VI. Staff meetings 

VII. Department white boards, electronic communication, patient safety rounding, the patient safety 
newsletter, and communication books 

Confidentiality 
I. 

II. All quality and patient safety data, materials, and information are private and confidential, shall be 
considered the property of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County, and as such is protected by state 
and federal health care quality statutes. 

III. Confidentiality shall be maintained, based on full respect of the patient's right to privacy and in keeping 
with hospital policy and state and federal regulations governing the confidentiality of quality and patient 
safety work. 

IV. Information, data results, reports and minutes generated by all quality management activities will be 
handled in a manner ensuring strict confidentiality 

V. Confidential information may include but is not limited to: Medical Staff committee minutes, organizational 
quality improvement committee minutes, electronic data gathering and reporting, and incident/occurrence 
reporting 

VI. Quality improvement activities will occur in ways that preserve confidentiality of information consistent 
with policy and established law 

REFERENCES 

reduce the risk of sentinel events. Please see Patient Safety Committee charter Data heading for details. 

Patient safety initiatives, lessons learned, and patient safety improvement work will be communicated as 
appropriate throughout the organization. Communication will occur through: 

WY Stat 35-2-910. Quality management function for health care facilities; confidentiality; immunity; whistle 
blowing; peer 

Quality and Patient Safety. (2019, April 1). Retrieved June 15, 2020, from http://www.ahrq.gov/qual/
patientsafetyculture/ 

Institute for Healthcare Improvement, Develop a Culture of Safety. (2019) http://www.ihi.org/IHI/Topics/
PatientSafety/SafetyGeneral/Changes/Develop+a+Culture+of+S afety.htm 

Griffin FA, Resar RK. IHI Global Trigger Tool for Measuring Adverse Events (Second Edition). IHI Innovation 
Series white paper. Cambridge, Massachusetts: Institute for Healthcare Improvement; 2009. 

The Joint Commission, Patient Safety Chapters. (2019)  https://www.jointcommission.org/-/media/tjc/

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 02/2022. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/10423249/. Copyright
© 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 7 of 8

48/147



DRAFTAttachments 

just-culture-process-algorithm_725x425px-96dpi_1.jpg 
Patient Safety Committee Charter.docx 

documents/standards/ps-chapters/20190701_2_camh_04a_ps.pdf 

Saint Mary Medical Center. (2019) Just Culture. Unpublished internal document 

Valley View Medical Center. (2021) Quality and Patient Safety Plan. Unpublished internal document 

PolicySource Hospital and Critical Access Hospital. (2021) System or Process Failure Response Policy. Joint 
Commission Resources (skyprepapp.com) 

Cleveland Clinic Indian River Hospital. (2021) Patient Safety Plan. Unpublished internal document 

Main Line Health. (2019) Patient Safety Plan. Unpublished internal document 

St. Johns Health. (2019) Patient Safety Program. Unpublished internal document 

LRGHealthcare. (August, 2019). Patient Safety Improvement Plan. Unpublished internal document 

Reviewed and Approved: 
Patient Safety Committee: November 18th, 2021 
MEC: November 23rd, 2021 
Quality Committee of the Board: February 16th, 2022 
Board of Trustees 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 02/2022. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/10423249/. Copyright
© 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 8 of 8

49/147



DRAFT

Current Status: Draft PolicyStat ID: 11252305 

Approved: N/A 
Review Due: N/A 
Document Area: Administration 
Reg. Standards: 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY 

i. communications in on-line communities made on behalf of MHSC by workforce members are consistent 
with the Hospital's policies (including its Employee Policies and Code of Conduct), Mission, policies, and 
applicable laws, including laws concerning privacy, confidentiality, copyright, and trademarks; 

ii. when a workforce member is not authorized to speak on Hospital's behalf, that his/her personal opinions 
in on-line communities express the fact that they are not representatives of Hospital; and 

iii. uses of Hospital-sponsored on-line communities are appropriate and that communications are accurate. 

• "MHSC or Hospital" means Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Hospital, including the Hospital, 

POLICY 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC or Hospital) believes that its participation in on-line 
communities can promote better communication with Hospital's colleagues and customers, the general public, 
traditional and non-traditional media, and other community stakeholders. Such participation may include, but 
is not limited to, postings in on-line forums, web logs (blogs), microblogs, wikis or vlogs (e.g., Facebook, 
LinkedIn, YouTube, Twitter, health pages and blogs, media sites or other similar types of on-line forums). 
However, communications produced by members of MHSC's workforce on behalf of Hospital in the on-line 
community must be consistent with MHSC's Vision, Mission & Values statement, Employee Policies, the 
Hospital's Code of Conduct, or other Hospital policies and all applicable laws. 

MHSC takes no position on any staff member's decision to participate in social media in his or her personal 
capacity, such as to start or maintain a personal blog or participate in other personal social networking 
activities. However, the lines between public and private, personal and professional blur in on-line social 
networks, and personal social media activities can affect a workplace member's work relationships and 
performance. Workforce members must therefore abide by this Policy, and should familiarize themselves with 
the general Hospital's social media guidelines at the end of this document for more information and guidance. 

MHSC may require that a workforce member temporarily discontinue use of Hospital sponsored on-line 
communities or stop acting on behalf of Hospital if Hospital believes the staff members communications are in 
violation of MHSC policies, Vision, Mission & Values Statement, Hospital's Code of Conduct or applicable 
laws, including state and federal patient privacy laws. 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Policy is to ensure: 

DEFINITIONS 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY. Retrieved 02/2022. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/11252305/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 5

50/147



DRAFT

Medical Office Building (MOB) and all groups and facilities operating as part of Hospital (such as the 
Family Practice Clinic). "MHSC or Hospital" shall also include the Hospital Foundation and Hospital 
Auxiliary. 

• "Applicable law(s)" means all federal, state and local laws that apply to a workforce member when 
performing Hospital-related duties. 

• "Mission" means the Hospitals official Mission statement. 
• "Protected information" means Hospital confidential or proprietary information, intellectual property, 

protected health information of any Hospital patient and any other information that is confidential and/or 
privileged by Applicable Law against unauthorized use and/or disclosure. 

• "Hospital sponsored on-line community" means Hospital's official social media presence, such as its 
official Facebook page and Twitter feed. 

• "Workforce member" means a Hospital governing body member, employee, volunteer, trainee or 
contractor. 

I. Unofficial Participation in On-line Communities 
Unless a workforce member is serving as an approved, official spokesperson for MHSC in on-line 
communications, such communications are the individual's personal opinions and do not reflect the 
opinion of MHSC. Each workforce member is personally responsible for his/her posts (written, audio, 
video or otherwise). 

a. Workforce members should not use Hospital provided email addresses or other identifying 
information (such as a work-related telephone number) to sign up for social media accounts. 

b. b.If a workforce member identifies him/herself as affiliated with MHSC on social media (i.e. 
identifying MHSC as his/her employer in a social media profile), the public may perceive that the 
member is speaking on Hospital's behalf, and Hospital reserves the right to require the member to 
follow the requirements of Section II of this Policy in his/her social media communications. 

II. If a social media communication is made in the workforce member's personal capacity, but the public 
could reasonably believe it is made on Hospital's behalf (i.e. because of the member's stated or known 
affiliation with Hospital, and/or the subject matter is relevant to his/her known employment), he/she should 
state that he/she is speaking personally and not on Hospital's behalf. 

A. For instance, the public may reasonably believe the workforce member is speaking on Hospital's 
behalf if the workforce member's social media profile identifies Hospital as his/her employer, and he/
she is commenting on a Hospital or local health care-related matter. In that case, the member should 
state that he/she is not speaking for MHSC. 

III. Official Spokesperson, Other Job-Specific Participation in On-line Forums and Hospital-
Sponsored On-line Communities 

a. As outlined in Hospital's media relations policies, if a member of the media or non-traditional on-line 
media (can include bloggers) contacts any workforce member at work about Hospital business (for 
example, MHSC news releases, operations, policies, practices, strategic commitments or additional 
business information of any kind), prior to responding, the individual must contact Hospital's 
Marketing Department at 307-352-8515. Hospital personnel will be presumed to be "at work", and 
subject to this Policy, if they receive the communication while on MHSC's campus, while on-duty, 
and/or using Hospital equipment. The Marketing Department will coordinate with other appropriate 
departments and/or may give an individual permission to serve as an official spokesperson, or 
prohibit the individual from providing information in an official capacity. Once an individual has 

PROCEDURE 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY. Retrieved 02/2022. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/11252305/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 5

51/147



DRAFT

approval to serve as an official spokesperson for Hospital, the individual must clearly identify himself/
herself as spokesperson for Hospital and clearly identify his/her scope of expertise. 

b. In some instances, a workforce member's department, or another department of Hospital in 
coordination with the Marketing Department, may ask the member to participate in particular on-line 
forums in other functional, job-specific capacities. Examples might include medical posts, 
collaboration with Hospital colleagues within blogs, micro blogs or forums, assist in recruitment 
efforts, or to share best practices on certain trade sites related to health care quality or the 
participant's profession. Prior to participation, the member and a representative of the Marketing 
Department should discuss involvement with the member's supervisor, receive approval and agree 
on parameters for the project, how the member should identify himself/herself in communications, as 
well as the length and scope of participation. 

IV. Personal Use of Hospital Sponsored On-line Communities 

a. Workforce members may not post any material to a Hospital-sponsored online community that 
includes Hospital protected information, or information that is obscene or defamatory, profane, 
libelous, threatening, harassing, abusive, hateful or humiliating to another person or entity. This 
includes, but is not limited to, comments regarding Hospital or Hospital personnel, customers, 
partners or patients. Employees should ask their managers and/or refer to Hospital's Employee, IT 
policies or other relevant Hospital policies if they have any questions about what is appropriate to 
include in web-based communications. 

b. Individuals who have concerns regarding workplace conduct or inappropriate behavior must contact 
their immediate supervisor, Human Resources or Hospital's Compliance Officer. Online forums are 
not the most effective way to resolve such issues. 

V. Inappropriate Use of Social Media 

a. No workforce member should use social media in a way that jeopardizes the health or safety of any 
person at Hospital; interferes with the performance of his/her Hospital job duties or harasses, bullies, 
belittles or in any way disparages any person at the Hospital. Hospital may consider any social 
media use that poses a reasonably foreseeable risk of any of the above a violation of this Policy. 

b. Workforce members are prohibited from using or disclosing Hospital protected information without 
authorization, including but not limited to for any non-Hospital business. Hospital-protected 
information includes personnel information and quality management information, which is confidential 
under Wyoming law. Individuals may be held personally liable for obscene, or defamatory 
commentary, and for disclosing confidential personnel information under Wyoming's Public Records 
Act. Any Hospital person who is unsure whether information is "protected information", or whether 
the use or disclosure is authorized or for Hospital business, must first check with his/her supervisor 
before using or disclosing the information. 

c. MHSC workforce members, while on duty, are prohibited from posting pictures of themselves in any 
media, including, but not limited to, the Internet, which depict Hospital in any way, including, but not 
limited to, Hospital's logo unless the employee receives approval from a Marketing Department 
representative or designee. Photo policies for representatives of Hospital attending community 
events will be developed by Marketing Department on a per-event basis. Workforce members should 
consult Hospital's other policies concerning photography and video in Hospital's facilities for further 
guidance. 

VI. Right to Monitor 
MHSC reserves the right to monitor public comments or discussions about MHSC, its employees, patients 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY. Retrieved 02/2022. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/11252305/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 5

52/147



DRAFT

and industry. Workforce members are cautioned that they should have no expectation of privacy while 
using Hospital equipment or facilities for any purpose, including authorized or unauthorized blogging. 

VII. Hospital Medical Staff Members 

a. This Policy applies directly to all Hospital Medical Staff members and practitioners with clinical 
privileges who are Hospital workforce members. 

b. Many of the provisions of this Policy are incorporated into Hospital's Medical Staff Bylaws, policies 
and Code of Conduct. Behavior that violates this Policy may also violate the Medical Staff Bylaws, 
Rules and Regulations and/or Policies, including the Medical Staff Code of Conduct, and may 
subject the medical staff member or practitioner to the Medical Staff corrective action process. 

c. Medical staff members and practitioners who are not MHSC workforce members are not permitted to 
represent themselves as speaking on MHSC's behalf without permission of the Hospital 
administration. 

VIII. Reporting Violations 

a. MHSC urges workforce members to report any violations or possible or perceived violations to 
supervisors, managers or the HR Department or Compliance Department. 

b. Violations of this Policy may result in disciplinary action up to, and including, termination. In addition, 
a violation of this Policy may also be a violation of an applicable law, which may carry the risk of civil 
enforcement or criminal prosecution. For instance, breaching the confidentiality of patient protected 
health information may also violate HIPAA, and subject the employee to legal proceedings and/or 
criminal charges by the federal government. 

SOCIAL MEDIA GUIDELINES 

The following are guidelines for MHSC employees, staff, and medical staff who participate in social media. 
Social media includes personal blogs and other websites, including Facebook, LinkedIn, Pinterest, Instagram, 
Twitter, YouTube, and others. Remember that content contributed on all platforms becomes immediately 
searchable and can be immediately shared. This content immediately leaves the contributing individual 
Hospital employees' and/or medical staff members' control forever. If you wouldn't want your manager or 
others at Hospital to see your comments, it is unwise to post them to the Internet. Failure to follow this policy 
can have consequences similar to violations of other Hospital policies. 

These guidelines apply whether employees are posting to their own sites or commenting on other sites: 

1. Follow all applicable Hospital policies. For example, you must not share confidential or proprietary 
information about Hospital and you must maintain patient privacy. Among the most pertinent policies are 
those concerning patient confidentiality; computer, email and internet use; photography and video; and 
release of patient information to media. 

2. Disclose your connection to Hospital. If you communicate in the public Internet about MHSC or MHSC-
related matters, disclose your connection with MHSC, including your role. Use good judgment and be 
accurate in your communications; errors and omissions reflect poorly on MHSC, and may result in liability for 
you or the Hospital. 

3. Where your connection to MHSC is apparent, make it clear that you are speaking for yourself and not on 
behalf of MHSC. In those circumstances, you should include this disclaimer: "The views expressed on this 
[blog; website] are my own and do not reflect the views of my employer." If you list MHSC as your employer, 
add this language in an "About me" section of your blog or social media profile. 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY. Retrieved 02/2022. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/11252305/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 4 of 5

53/147



DRAFT
Attachments 

No Attachments 

4. Use a personal email address (not your sweetwatermemorial.com address) as your primary means of 
identification. Just as you would not use Hospital stationery for a letter to the editor with your personal views, 
do not use your Hospital e-mail address for personal views. 5. Hospital strongly discourages "friending" of 
patients on social media websites. Staff in patient care roles generally should not initiate or accept friend 
requests except when an in-person friendship pre-dates the treatment relationship. 

6. Hospital discourages staff in management/supervisory roles from initiating "friend" requests with employees 
they manage. Managers/supervisors may accept friend requests if initiated by the employee, and if the 
manager/supervisor does not believe it will negatively impact the work relationship. 

7. MHSC does not endorse people, products, services, or organizations. On social media websites such as 
LinkedIn, where your affiliation to MHSC is known, personal recommendations or endorsements should not 
be given or requested. 

8. Your social media name, handle, or URL should not include MHSC's name or logo, unless approved by the 
Marketing Department. 

9. Be respectful and professional to fellow employees, business partners, competitors and patients. Avoid 
using unprofessional on-line personas. 

10. Focus on work at work. Ensure that your blogging and social networking activity does not interfere with 
your work commitments. 

11. Don't disrupt the workplace/health system. You may be subject to action by Hospital for posting or 
promoting content that substantially disrupts or materially interferes with Hospital activities or that might lead 
Hospital authorities to reasonably foresee substantial disruption or material interference with Hospital 
activities. Disciplinary action may be taken based on behavioral misconduct or professional misconduct, and 
may range from a reprimand to dismissal. 

12. Payment is a conflict of interest. If someone or some group offers to pay a Hospital employee or medical 
staff member for participating in an on-line community in their Hospital role, offers advertising for pay and/or 
for endorsement, this could constitute conflict of interest, and Hospital policies and guidelines apply. 

13. Forward media requests. If someone from the media or press contacts staff about posts made in on-line 
communities that relate to MHSC in any way, staff should alert their manager/leadership and contact the 
Marketing Department. 

14. Complaints. If a patient or family member posts complaints about service or other issues, notify Grievance 
or Quality Department. 

15. Questions? Call the Marketing Department at 307-352-8515 if you have any questions about what is 
appropriate to include in your blog or social networking profile. 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY. Retrieved 02/2022. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/11252305/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 5 of 5

54/147



 

  Page 1 of 3 

Confidential   4/1/2022 

Quality Committee Meeting 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

 March 16, 2022 

 
 

Present:  Voting Members: Kara Jackson (Quality Director), Dr. Barbara Sowada (Quality 

Board Chair), Irene Richardson (CEO), Tami Love (CFO), Dr. Kari Quickenden (CCO), 

Leslie Taylor (Clinic Director), Ed Tardoni (Quality Board Member), Dr. Alisha Gray, Dr. 

Melinda Poyer (CMO), 

 

Non-voting Members:  Corey Worden, Valerie Boggs, Cindy Nelson, Karali Plonsky, 

Noreen Hove, Jennifer Rogers 

 

Guests: James Horan 

 

Absent/Excused:  Voting Members:  Ann Marie Clevenger (CNO), Dr. Jacques Denker,  

  

Non-voting Members: Kalpana Pokhrel 

 

Chair:   Dr. Barbara Sowada  

 

Approval of Agenda & Minutes 

Meeting was called to order at 8:23, due to a delay awaiting the quorum to be met. Dr. Sowada 

presented the Agenda for approval, Dr. Quickenden motioned to approve and Ms. Jackson 

seconded the motion. Motion carried. Dr. Sowada then presented the February 16, 2022 Minutes 

for approval. Dr. Quickenden motioned to approve and Ms. Jackson seconded the motion. 

Motion carried. 

 

Mission Moment 

Dr. Quickenden shared a Mission Moment for our Thankful Thursday sharing of cards – Patient’s 

spouse shared they were treated with as much care and respect as the patient from all staff. Dr. 

Sowada shared a personal experience where the staff went above and beyond to complete her 

care order. 

 

Old Business 

Mr. Worden shared and reviewed the Control Charts for ED-2B and Sepsis. Dr. Sowada noted that 

for ED-2B the increased amount of time spent in the ED tracked with the increased number of 

COVID patients in the ED. Mr. Worden stated that the eight data points in a row above the 

control line indicates that the process is not stable.  Dr. Quickenden confirmed a team was being 

gathered to review the data, but in the meantime the Nursing leaders are auditing charts. We 

should have more information to report next month. 

 

New Business 

Mr. Horan, Facilities Director, presented the Annual Evaluation for Environment of Care. This 

annual evaluation is mandated by The Joint Commission, but it is also a very valuable resource 

for our facility to evaluate and plan for mitigation of risk and safety. The Annual Evaluation 

includes 6 key planning areas: Fire Safety Management, Security Management, Safety 

Management, Utility Management, Medical Equipment Management, and Hazardous 

Materials/Waste Management. Each “plan” contains 5 objectives: Plan Status, Plan Objective, 

Survey Findings, Changes to this Plan and Upcoming Developments.  

 

55/147



 

  Page 2 of 3 

Confidential   4/1/2022 

 

Every 3 years we have an independent company come in and do a Life Safety Audit. “Outside” 

eyes are helpful to evaluate our current status. Each time they find a few items, which gives us 

our performance indicator, by correcting these findings. 

 

Mr. Horan “Thanked” the Board and Ms. Richardson for applying Cares Act Money toward 

improving the infrastructure and the environment. It was a perfect storm, we had thoughts and 

plans when the money came available. Mr. Tardoni noted that the knowledge and 

understanding of our building and grounds by Facilities staff allowed us to quickly react when 

Cares Act Money became available. 

 

Dr. Quickenden gave an overview of the CMS Survey by WDOH that occurred on February 23rd 

for a State Agency Validation Survey, specifically looking at Nursing Services, and they also 

surveyed our Vaccine Mandates compliance.  Before the surveyor left we were told that the 

validation survey was unsubstantiated, that that was cleared. Last week we received notification 

from WDOH of a few areas to work on regarding the vaccine mandates. Our team feels this was 

a “gift”, it was a great exercise and helped us to understand what we needed to work on. 

 

Medical Staff Update 

Dr. Poyer is out of town, but Dr. Quickenden was provided a written report, which she shared: 

COVID numbers have significantly decreased, we have decreased number of Incident 

Command meetings, and we are increasing visitors – which should improve patient satisfaction. 

Dr. Poyer is working with the Medical Chief of Staff for improved understanding with the medical 

staff on the importance of quality measures. Moving forward, Dr. Poyer will be giving those 

reports with the MEC and General Medical staff. Dr. Poyer also note she had a couple medical 

providers to highlight, but would bring those next month. We continue to work on the Cerner 

transition scheduled for mid-April. We are developing a plan for extraction of Sepsis measures. 

We have reviewed Re-Admission measures, and will be meeting with Skilled Nursing, Home Health 

and Case Management to discuss what admission and management challenges everyone is 

having and to develop a roadmap going forward with the impacts COVID19 has made. 

 

Informational Items for Review/Discussion 

Dr. Sowada had a question regarding HCAHPS scores. Dr. Sowada noted like other facilities 

COVID has impacted our scores, but as it wanes, “What is our plan, going forward, to start to 

bring those scores back up?”. Dr. Quickenden stated we wanted to be sensitive to our staff and 

their exhaustion, but not make excuses. We made improvements in Quarter 1, in between the 

surges, but will be pulling the groups back together and working with the Nurse Directors on 

focused performance improvement. Currently EVS is working with Nursing on a new initiative.  

 

We are still struggling with staffing and exhaustion, we’re not over the hump. We are looking at 

plans for Culture of Safety survey, and Workplace Experience survey, with questions for “burnout” 

and how we can better support staff. Dr. Poyer was able to join late, and noted that “Healthcare 

in the US is fragile” and we are not unique in that, but maybe it’s more noticeable in our smaller 

community, where we see each other on the inside and the outside. It’s going to take a lot for 

healthcare to heal as well as ourselves. There is not a road map for that, no one in healthcare 

today has experienced a pandemic of this magnitude.  

 

Mr. Tardoni expounded on his feelings on the charts, the red is stress inducing, but if you look 

within the red, even there you will see improvement. We need to focus on the patient, and the 

56/147



 

  Page 3 of 3 

Confidential   4/1/2022 

improvements will come. Ms. Richardson agreed with previous comments, noting we have 

added many travelers who we have onboarded with Patient Centered Care, but it might be 

beneficial to focus on them, to ensure they understand our Mission, Vision and Values. 

 

Dr. Quickenden gave a quick overview of the new Risk reports from Synergi. She noted we are 

getting much more from the new software, which is very encouraging and givies us a chance to 

look at processes and work to improve those.   We are still learning and training on reports, but 

what we are seeing is much cleaner and more comprehensive, and we should see more 

changes in April. 

 

We have come to the end of the meeting with 15 minutes left. Dr. Sowada has requested 

everyone share what strength we have discovered about ourselves over the past 2 years of the 

pandemic: 

 Ms. Richardson started – Perseverance! We have been though 2 of the toughest years, 

and we’re doing our best to survive. We will get through this, we just need to persevere. 

 Mr. Tardoni likened the hospital staff to men walking into a burning mine! They faced 

danger and challenges daily, and it says a lot about humanity. Credit is due and all are 

better for it.  

 Ms. Love stated her appreciation of Clinical staff. They went into their careers to help 

people, but may have experienced more in these past 2 years than ever expected.  

 Ms. Taylor and Dr. Quickenden both reiterated that feeling of appreciation.  

 Mr. Horan noted this has brought forth some difficult decisions, it has been an eye opener. 

 Ms. Jackson stated she felt we had learned we are master problem solvers! 

 Mr. Worden noted as a person with an auto-immune disease, he was left with a lot of 

worries, but found he had a lot of strengths as well.  

 Ms. Plonsky noted she learned to reach out, to help fill her and other’s buckets.                                

 Dr. Poyer stated we have seen the best and the worst of people, we all have a breaking 

point and sometime we needed that, but then we get back up and do the right thing.  

 Dr. Sowada said she had learned she can be optimistic! It’s been tough and we are all 

different.            

 Dr. Gray agreed we all have found new strengths – we found perseverance and courage! 

We have seen all the staff wanting to help our community, knowing these are our friends 

and wanting to do the best for them. 

 Ms. Nielson stated she learned the value of connection, life is short, it can be shorter than 

we thought, and it is very important what we do with that time. We need to prioritize and 

focus and make those moments matter.  

 
Meeting Adjourned   The meeting adjourned at 9:36 am 

 

Next Meeting    April 20, 2022 at 08:15 am via ZOOM. 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________________________      

Robin Fife, Recording Secretary 

57/147



1 
 

To: Board of Trustees 

From: Barbara J. Sowada, Chair 

Re: Human Resources Committee Meeting 

Date: March 21, 2022 

 

The Human Resources Committee met March 21st from 3:00 to 4:00 pm by Zoom.  

 

Major discussion items were as follows: 

 Turnover report showed 129 employees left MHSC in 2021, compared to 67 in 2020. Number of 

employees in January was 566. There are 70 open positions.  

 Due to Covid, high turnover in ED and Respiratory Therapy.  

 Contract labor continues to be a concern with sixteen percent as contract labor. Because of the time 

it takes to recruit and orient a new employee, the goal is to gradually reduce contract labor. The goal is to 

have little or no contract labor by December, 2022. 
 Two policies were reviewed: Exempt Employees PTO and Other Benefits and Non-Exempt Employees PTO 

and Other Benefits. Policies were revised to align with changes made to Introductory Period and 

Probationary Period policies. These are hospital policies and don’t need Board approval. 

 

For more detail, see the reports and minutes of this meeting that are included in the April Board packet. 

 

Next HR meeting will be April 18th. 

 

 

58/147



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Human Resources Committee Meeting – Minutes Draft 
Monday – March 21, 2022 
Zoom 
 
Trustee Member Present by Zoom: Barbara Sowada, Kandi Pendleton 
Voting Members Present by Zoom: Amber Fisk, Irene Richardson, Suzan Campbell 
Non-Voting Members & Guests Present by Zoom: Ann Clevenger, Amy Lucy, Ruthann Wolfe, Shawn 
Bazzanella, Edward Boggs 
 
 
Barbara called the meeting to order.   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

The motion to approve the agenda was made by Kandi, second by Irene. Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Amber wasn’t able to obtain the February minutes so the committee discussed that both the February 
and March minutes will be approved at the April meeting. 
 
ROUTINE REPORTS 
 

Turnover 
 

Amber reviewed the data. She said our turnover rate for the previous rolling 12-month period is 24%, 
also discussed two other numbers to the turnover report reflecting separations caused by vaccine 
mandate.  
 
Open Positions & Contract Staffing 

 

Amy reported we have 68 open positions, 57 full time 1 part time and 10 PRN.  It was discussed that 6% 
of the total number of employees are contract staff. Kandi asked if the possibility of bringing in a third 
party to run the cafeteria was causing any anxiety among staff or contributing to separation 

 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

Exempt & Non-Exempt Employee Policies 
 

Suzan made minor changes to the policies which were approved by the committee and decide changes 
didn’t need to go to the board for approval.  This was motioned by Kandi and Irene second and it was 
moved. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

None 
 

59/147



 

Minutes of the January 17, 2022 Human Resources Committee 
Page 2 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
None  
 
The next meeting is scheduled Monday, April 18, 2022. Please let Amber know if the timing does not 
work and we can reschedule.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:43 PM. 

60/147



61/147



62/147



63/147



64/147



65/147



66/147



67/147



68/147



69/147



70/147



71/147



72/147



73/147



74/147



75/147



76/147



77/147



78/147



79/147



80/147



81/147



82/147



83/147



84/147



85/147



86/147



87/147



88/147



89/147



90/147



91/147



92/147



93/147



94/147



95/147



96/147



97/147



98/147



99/147



100/147



101/147



102/147



103/147



104/147



105/147



106/147



107/147



108/147



109/147



110/147



111/147



112/147



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…March, 2022 Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 
Date:  March 25, 2022 
 
Medical Imaging Project…workers are completing remaining tasks. Should be done within a few 
days. The State needs to provide a final inspection. 
 
Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Project…Staff continues to look at options for this project. The 
exhaust and HVAC issues are of prime importance. 
 
Dr. Sulentich’s Office Renovation…the contractor, as of the date of the meeting, has not yet 
been notified that the Board approved the bid. This notification will be done immediately. 
 
Building Automation System Upgrade…Most parts are at the work site. Some work has been 
done. Harris will begin their portion of the work mid-April. 
 
Bulk Oxygen Project…bids are due on March 22nd. Four or five general contractors showed up at 
the pre-bid meeting. Ed asked several questions about some project-specific matters. 
 
Generator ATS/Lightening Eliminators…the Lightening Eliminators Company is still working on 
their proposal to MHSC. It was emphasized that this project move along as quickly as possible. 
 
Special Purpose Tax Projects…the Commission has in its possession the Hospital’s 
recommended project. I indicated that a second, back-up proposal be in our “back pocket” in 
the event the number one option is deemed too expensive. A discussion took place regarding 
possible SLIB money. Matching funds will be required.  
 
As usual, for more details, please refer to the March meeting minutes in the packet. 

113/147



114/147



115/147



116/147



117/147



118/147



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…March Compliance Committee Meeting 
Date:  March 31, 2022 
 
The Committee reviewed the Compliance Risk Assessment Matrix. There were no changes to 
this matrix from last month. 
 
Suzan presented the 2022 Work Plan. The three areas of focus are as follows; however, as the 
months pass and an area of focus is completed, other areas of focus will be added. 

 Physical Resources, including insurance coverages. USI will be conducting a review of 
our coverages, including an on-site visit. 

 Overtime. April will be auditing overtime usage to determine if the Hospital’s policies 
and federal laws are being adhered to. 

 Cybersecurity. April will be auditing MHSC policies as they apply and reviewing the 
Hospital’s related insurance policies. 

 
The Committee discussed HIPAA issues. Barbara and I emphasized that if any corrective action 
needed to take place that the involved employee’s supervisor needs to be handling that…not 
the HR Director. The HR Director can provide advice and counsel to the supervisor, but it is the 
supervisor who must handle the corrective action. 
 
Red Flags…no reports have been filed via the Red Flag program since its inception. 
 
Suzan provided the Committee the HCC-Compliance Resource Guide.  This is a very good 
resource. Barbara suggested it be placed in the Board Library for reference. 
 
As usual, for more detail, please refer to the minutes of the meeting prepared by April Prado. 

119/147



 

  Page 1 of 2 

Confidential   4/1/2022 

Board Compliance Committee Meeting 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

March 28th, 2022 

 
  

Present via Zoom: Marty Kelsey, Trustee-Chair, Irene Richardson, CEO, Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel, April 
Prado, Foundation & Compliance, Barb Sowada, Alternate Committee Member.   
Absent/Excused: Kandi Pendleton, Trustee.    

Minutes 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order at 9:01 am by Marty Kelsey. It was noted by Marty that Barb Sowada was in 
attendance today, in the absence of Kandi Pendelton. 
Agenda 
The March agenda was approved as written, Barb made the motion and Suzan seconded it. Motion carried. 
Meeting Minutes 
The meeting minutes from February 2022 were presented. Suzan made the motion to approve the minutes as 
written and Irene seconded. There was no further discussion. Motion carried.  
 

Old Business 
Standing items report 

A. Compliance Risk Assessment- Suzan reported that this document has not changed and it was 
presented so that the Board what is being used to form our Work Plan. 

B. 2022 Work Plan- This draft document was presented by Suzan. She stated that this document has 
been approved by this committee and is currently in the Board packet for review and approval at their 
April meeting. Suzan pointed out that compliance audits had been decided for the year. They are as 
follows; A-Physical Plant-we will be contracting with U.S.I. for a review of our facility. Suzan stated 
that that this company will coordinate a date with our insurance for an on-site visit. We are hoping 
that it will be the first week of May. This will be a fairly large audit and will cover a lot of areas. B-
Overtime- April will audit our current overtime policies while looking for fallouts. We are looking for 
where we are paying overtime and if it falls within the current policy. C-Cybersecurity- April will audit 
these policies and look at the insurance policies that go with them. We are looking to identify any gaps 
in our internal process and the insurance coverage that we have. Irene added that John with U.S.I. was 
very much about us being proactive instead of reactive with the Physical Plant review/audit. This 
review will be based on things that have happened to us and also making sure that we aren’t missing 
other potential risks. She added that this audit will look at things that could potentially shut us down 
and that it is very important that we stay on top of these things. Marty agreed that Physical Plant 
Operations cannot be overlooked. Marty asked for clarification of this plan. He questioned if more 
audits would/could be done if these three were completed before years. Suzan said that we can 
absolutely do more if these are completed before years end. Marty also asked if these three audits 
were the most important to the facility. Irene discussed how Suzan and her chose these areas for 
audit and referred to the “Compliance Work Assessment” from the packet. She stated that based on 
the scores for these areas and the potential risk of what could shut us down, she is confident that 
these are the top three. She referenced a previous lightening strike that took out our surgery 
department for weeks and more recently, the water line that broke in the E.R., shutting down two 
entrances.  

C. HIPAA Potential Breaches- Suzan discussed the old process for HIPAA reporting and that it was being 
done in our medical records department and then Human Resources. She said that the new process 
will be getting the potential breaches into Healthicity, investigation by April, Human Resources (if 
needed), and then a report similar to what was originally presented to this committee. We are hoping 

 

120/147



 

  Page 2 of 2 

Confidential   4/1/2022 

that the new report will be presented at next months meeting. Marty and Barb questioned if 
supervisors/directors were involved in this process. Suzan answered that they are. April added that 
Human Resources, the supervisor and the employee are all involved in this process. Barb added that 
the supervisor is supposed to do the corrective action based on our current policy. Marty added that 
the policy is very specific and that the supervisor HAS to be the one doing the corrective action. Barb 
added that her bias is that H.R. is doing the corrective action and it should be the supervisor and that 
this is a great opportunity to for us, as a team, to enforce the supervisor and that we could use this for 
the positive that is being done as well. Irene stated that supervisors will reach out to H.R. for their 
advice in corrective actions but the supervisors are the ones actually doing the corrective action. Irene 
also asked when the last time was that we have done a big HIPAA training. She thinks it has been a 
few years besides new hires doing it in orientation and continuing education. She thinks it is time to 
do another training hospital wide. Suzan will look into this. Marty asked Suzan if she had received any 
comments or noted on the Compliance Document that had been sent out for review and Suzan said 
she has not.  

D. Red Flag Reports- Suzan stated that this program is up and running and no reports have been filed. 
She added that this program gives employees the opportunity to report online, over the phone or by 
fax. If something is reported, it will appear in this section. Suzan added that it is required by law to 
have this and that employees think it is user friendly.  
 

New Business 
a. HCC- Compliance Resource Guide- Suzan added this stating that this is our guide for Compliance. She 

stated that this is what she used to draft our Compliance Document and it will be our guiding 
document moving forward. Barb added that this is a huge document and questioned finding what 
applies to us. Suzan said that it is large but it can be narrowed down for our specifics and that it gives 
us a starting point. Barb stated that this document should be added to the Board Library for future 
reference and that will be done.  
 

Additional Comments 
Marty asked for any additional comments and none were given. Suzan asked the committee if there was anything 
else they wanted to see in this report and everyone answered nothing at this time. Barb added that it is easy to 
see that a lot of work has gone into this and that it is moving along well.    

 
 

Adjournment   The meeting adjourned at 9:31 a.m. 
 

Next Meeting    
The next meeting will be Monday, April 25th, 2022 @9:00 a.m. Irene added that she will be at a conference but she 
and will get away and call in.  
 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 

 

_____________________________________________      

April Prado, Recording Secretary 

 

121/147



 

Minutes 

Governance Committee Meeting 

March 24, 2022 

Present: Taylor Jones, Barbara Sowada, and Irene Richardson 

Call to Order: Irene Richardson called the Zoom meeting to order at 2:00 pm 

Agenda was constructed during the meeting 

Minutes had been previously approved 

Old Business - None 

New Business 

 1. Ambulance issues were discussed. Although County Commissioners last summer appointed 

Castle Rock to provide ambulances services for the community, there are still many issues to be worked 

out. 

2. The process for the Board, the CEO, and the physicians for credentialling was reviewed. All 

agreed that the current process is sound and must be followed without exception.  

3. Iprotean video for April Board meeting is MAKING DIFFICULT DECISIONS ABOUT SERVICES 
AND PROGRAMS A PORTFOLIO APPROACH (Both Part 1 and Part 2) 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 3:30 pm. 

Next meeting is Thursday, April 21, 2022, at 11:00 am by Zoom. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Barbara J. Sowada, Ph.D. 

 

122/147



123/147



124/147



125/147



126/147



127/147



128/147



129/147



130/147



131/147



132/147



133/147



134/147



135/147



136/147



137/147



138/147



139/147



140/147



141/147



142/147



143/147



144/147



145/147



146/147



147/147


	Agenda - April 6 2022 Mtg
	Our Mission and Vision
	Minutes
	Rules of Practice Governing Hearings
	Compliance Program
	Patient Safety Plan
	Social Media Policy
	Quality Committee
	HR Committee Chair Report to Board Mar 22 Barbara Sowada
	Human Resources Minutes March 2022 Draft Shawn Bazzanella
	March Committee Meeting Information
	Building and Grounds...Chair&apos;s Report...March 2022 Marty Kelsey
	B&G March 2022 for April Packet
	Compliance Committee...Chair&apos;s Report...March 2022 Marty Kelsey
	Compliance Meeting Draft Minutes March 2022 April Prado
	Governance Committee
	Express Recovery Services
	Unidine
	Civco

